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NOTICE 

 
NOTICE is hereby given that the Tenth Annual General Meeting of Tata BlueScope Steel Limited will 
be held on Wednesday, 30th September, 2015, at 11.00 a.m. at the Registered Office of the Company 
at the Metropolitan, 4th Floor, Survey No. 21, Wakdewadi, Shivaji Nagar, Pune - 411005, India to 
transact the following business: 
 
 
ORDINARY BUSINESS: 
 
1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the 

Financial Year ended 31 March, 2015 and the Reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditors 
thereon; 

 
2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Sanjay Dayal (DIN 02506378) who retires by rotation and 

being eligible offers himself for re-appointment. 
 
3. To appoint a Director in place of Ms. Samita Shah (DIN 02350176) who retires by rotation and 

being eligible offers herself for re-appointment. 
 

 

4. To consider and if thought fi t, to pass with or without modification(s), the following Resolution as 
an Ordinary Resolution: 

 
“RESOLVED THAT subject to the provision of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules 
made there under Messrs Deloitte, Haskins & Sells LLP, Chartered Accountants (Firm’s Registration 
No. 117366W/ W-100018)  the retiring Auditors, be and are hereby reappointed as Auditors of the 
Company to hold office from the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of the 
next Annual General Meeting of the Company and to examine and audit the accounts of the Company 
for the Financial Year 2015-16 at such remuneration (plus  taxes and out-of-pocket expenses) as 
may be mutually agreed between the Board of Directors and the Auditors.” 
 

SPECIAL BUSINESS: 
 

5. To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an 
Ordinary Resolution: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT Mr. Sudam Maitra (DIN: 00035398) who was appointed by the Board of Directors 
as an Additional Director of the Company with effect from 31st March, 2015 and who holds office up 
to the date of this Annual General Meeting of the Company in terms of Section 161 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 (“Act”) but who is eligible for appointment and has consented to act as a Director of the 
Company and in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in writing from a Member under 
Section 160 of the Act proposing his candidature for the office of Director of the Company, be and is 
hereby appointed a Director of the Company. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 152 and other applicable 
provisions, if any, of the Act, and the Rules framed thereunder read with Schedule IV to the Act, as 
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amended from time to time, appointment of Mr. Sudam Maitra (who meets the criteria for 
independence) as provided in Section 149(6) of the Act as an Independent Director of the Company, 
not liable to retire by rotation, for a term commencing with effect from 31st March 2015 to 30th March 
2020 be and is hereby approved.” 
 
 

6. To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an 
Ordinary Resolution: 
 
 “RESOLVED THAT Mr. Srikumar Menon (DIN 00470254) who was appointed by the Board of 
Directors as an Additional Director of the Company with effect from 31st March, 2015 and who holds 
office up to the date of this Annual General Meeting of the Company in terms of Section 161 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) but who is eligible for appointment and has consented to act as a 
Director of the Company and in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in writing from 
a Member under Section 160 of the Act proposing his candidature for the office of Director of the 
Company, be and is hereby appointed a Director of the Company. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 152 and other applicable 
provisions, if any, of the Act, and the Rules framed thereunder read with Schedule IV to the Act, as 
amended from time to time, appointment of Mr. Srikumar Menon who meets the criteria for 
independence) as provided in Section 149(6) of the Act as an Independent Director of the Company, 
not liable to retire by rotation, for a term commencing with effect from 31st March 2015 to 30th March 
2020 be and is hereby approved.” 
 
 

7. To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an 
Ordinary Resolution: 
 
 
“RESOLVED THAT Mr. Krishnava Satyaki Dutt (DIN 02792753) who was appointed by the Board of 
Directors as an Additional Director of the Company with effect from 31st March, 2015 and who holds 
office up to the date of this Annual General Meeting of the Company in terms of Section 161 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) but who is eligible for appointment and has consented to act as a 
Director of the Company and in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in writing from 
a Member under Section 160 of the Act proposing his candidature for the office of Director of the 
Company, be and is hereby appointed a Director of the Company. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 152 and other applicable 
provisions, if any, of the Act, and the Rules framed thereunder read with Schedule IV to the Act, as 
amended from time to time, appointment of Mr. Krishnava Satyaki Dutt who meets the criteria for 
independence) as provided in Section 149(6) of the Act as an Independent Director of the Company, 
not liable to retire by rotation, for a term commencing with effect from 31st March 2015 to  30th March 
2018 be and is hereby approved.” 
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8. To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an 

Ordinary Resolution: 
 

“RESOLVED THAT , Mr. Patrick John Finan (DIN 05274228) who was appointed as an addition 
Directors of the Company by then Board of Directors w.e.f 31st March 2015, in terms of Section 161(1) 
of the Companies Act 2013, who holds office up to the date of this Annual general Meeting and in 
respect of whom the Company has received a notice in writing from a member proposing his 
candidature for the office of Director, be and is hereby appointed as Director of the Company whose 
period of office shall be liable to determination by retirement of rotation. 

 
9. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification, the following resolution as an 

Ordinary Resolution :  
 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 148 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder, as amended from time to time, the Company hereby ratifies 
the remuneration of ₹ 5 lakhs plus out-of-pocket expenses payable to Messrs B.M Sharma & Co, Cost 
Accountants, who have been appointed by the Board of Directors as the Cost Auditors of the 
Company, to conduct the audit of the cost records of the Company, for the Financial Year ending 31 
March, 2016.”  

 
10. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification, the following resolution as a 

Special Resolution : 
 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 197, 203 and any other applicable 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made there-under (including any statutory 
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), read with Schedule V to the 
Companies Act, 2013 (corresponding to Sections 198, 269, 309 and any other applicable provisions 
of the Companies Act, 1956 read with Schedule XIII to the Companies Act, 1956) and subject to 
such other approvals as may be required, remuneration of Rs. 62,91,294 (Sixty Two Lakhs, Ninety 
One Thousand, Two Hundred and Ninety Four) (exclusive of Performance Bonus) payable to Mr. 
Riten Choudhury (DIN 06636911), as Managing Director of the  Company for the period from April 
1, 2015 till 31st March, 2016, be and is hereby approved. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT performance bonus of Rs. 31,50,000 (Thirty One Lakhs Fifty 
Thousand) paid to Mr. Riten Choudhury (DIN : 06636911), Managing Director for the Financial Year 
2014-15 be and is hereby approved 
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NOTES: 
 
(1) A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO 

APPOINT ONE OR MORE PROXIES TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF AND 
THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. THE PROXY, IN ORDER TO 
BE EFFECTIVE, MUST BE DEPOSITED AT THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY 
NOT LESS THAN 48 HOURS BEFORE THE COMMENCEMENT OF THE MEETING. 

(2) An explanatory statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, relating to the 
Special Business to be transacted at the meeting is annexed hereto. 

(3) Corporate Members intending to send their authorized representatives to attend the Meeting 
are requested to send a certified copy of Board resolution authorizing their representative to 
attend and vote on their behalf at the Meeting. 

(4) The Meeting is convened by way of shorter notice and the consent of all the shareholders                         
have been received for the same. 

 
 

By order of the Board of Directors, 
For Tata BlueScope Steel Limited  
 
Sd/- 
Kavita Sethi Jain 
Company Secretary 
 
Date: 14th September 2015 
Place: Pune 
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT SETTING OUT MATERIAL FACTS AS  REQUIRED BY SECTION 102 
(2) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 
 
ITEM NO 5 to 7 
 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013, your Company needs to 

have at least one third of the total number of Directors as Independent Directors. The 

Independent Directors appointed herein shall not be liable to retire by rotation. 

 
 

Mr. Sudam Maitra, Mr. Srikumar Menon and Mr. Krishnava Dutt were appointed by the Board of 

Directors of your Company on 31st March 2015 as Additional Director in the capacity as non-

executive and   Independent Director. Each of these Directors have given the disclosure that they 

meet the criteria for independence as laid down in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and 

they are not disqualified as contemplated under Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013.  These 

Directors do not hold the equity shares of the Company. 
 
 

Mr. Sudam Maitra, a Mechanical Engineer from IIT Delhi, is currently the National President of 

Indian Value Engg Society (affiliated to SAVE U.S.A.). Mr. Maitra worked in Bata India for a period 

of 3 years in Mould Shop. He then joined the TELCO, now Tata Motors, for a period of 4 years in 

Quality Assurance department. Post this employment, Mr.Sudam Maitra worked in Maruti Suzuki 

for a period of 31 years in the areas of quality including Supplier Quality, manufacturing, service 

and supply chain and left the office as Chief Operating Officer (Supply Chain). Currently, he is also 

Deputy Managing Director of IFB Industries and MD of IFB Automotive Pvt. Ltd. Mr. Maitra was 

awarded the Supply Chain Person of the year 2013 from Indian Chamber of Commerce. He was 

the Sourcing Committee Chair person of SIAM and is currently the National President of Indian 

Value Engg Society (affiliated to SAVE U.S.A.). 

 

Srikumar Menon, Chartered Accountant, is the Managing Director, South Asia of the Linde Group 

with responsibilities for the India, Bangladesh and Srilanka buisness. He joined Linde India Ltd in 

October 2001 as a Finance Director and held position of Managing Director of the company from 

Oct 2008 to July 2013.He took over responsibilities for the South Asia Cluster comprising of India, 

Bangladesh and Srilanka in Jan 2012 and was formally designated as the Managing Director, South 

Asia of the Linde Group in August 2013. Mr Menon has worked in various capacities in Central 

Govt., Joint Sector, India Private Sector and Multinational companies. Prior to joining Linde, he 

was Vice president, Finance at Pidilite Industries Limited. He is also council member of the Eastern 

Region of the Indo- German Chamber of Commerce and is a member of General Committee of CII, 

Eastern Region and is the chairman of the Economic Affairs, Finance & taxation Sub Committee 

 

Mr. Krishnava Dutt, Bachelor of Socio-Legal Sciences and Bachelor of Law, is currently the 

Managing Partner,  Argus Partners, Solicitors & Advocates. Mr Dutt’s   experience encompasses 

the entire repertoire of corporate practice including mergers and acquisitions, private equity, 

banking and finance, projects and project finance. He has extensive experience in advising both 

the government and private players in various infrastructure projects across the country, 

especially in the water, airport, roads and mining sector. He started his legal career in the Calcutta 

High Court where he practiced civil law. After that, he joined ICICI Bank in Mumbai. He joined 

Amarchand Mangaldas in 2005 and became the partner in charge of the eastern operations of the 

firm in the year 2007. 'Chambers and Partners' identified Mr. Dutt in the category - 'Leaders in 

their Field' in Chambers Asia-Pacific 2012 edition. 
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None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their respective relatives, 

except Mr. Sudam Maitra, Mr Srikumar Menon and Mr Krishnava Dutt, to whom the resolutions 

relate, are concerned or interested in the Resolution mentioned at Item Nos. 5 to 7 of the Notice. 

 

The Board recommends the resolutions set forth in Item Nos. 5 to 7 for the approval of the 

Members. 
 
ITEM NO 8  
 
The Board of Directors of the Company in appointed Mr. Pattrick Finan as an Additional Director 

of the Company w.e.f. March 31, 2015. Pursuant to Section 160 of the Companies Act 2013 Mr. 

Pattrick Finan holds office up to the date of the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.  

 

Mr. Patrick Finan is the Chief Executive of the Global Building Solutions of BlueScope Steel, 

Australia and  was associated with the Company in the capacity of Alternate Director for the last 

3 years.     

 

Under Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has received requisite notice from a 

Member proposing the candidature of Mr. Pattrick Finan for the office of Director.  

 

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives, except 

Patrick Finan, to whom the resolution relates, is concerned or interested in the Resolution 

mentioned at Item No. 8 of the Notice. 

 

The Board recommends the resolution set forth in Item No 8 for the approval of the Members. 

 
 
ITEM NO 9 
 
Based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, the Board in its meeting held on 30th June 

2015, appointed M/S B.M Sharma & Co. Cost Accountants to conduct the Audit of the Cost Records 

maintained by the Company for the Financial Year 2015-16. The remuneration of Rs. 5 Lakhs 

(excluding Taxes and out of Pocket Expenses) has been agreed between the Management and the 

Cost Auditors. 

 

In terms of Provisions of Section 148(3) of the Companies Act 2013 read with Rule 14(a)(iii) of the 

Companies (Audit & Auditors) Rules, 2014 the remuneration payable to Cost Auditor is to be 

ratified by the Members of the Company. Accordingly, the Members are requested to ratify the 

remuneration payable to Cost Auditors as set out in the remuneration in item No 9 of the Notice. 

 

Pursuant to provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Companies (Audit & 

Auditors) Rules 2014, requires the approval of Members by way of Ordinary Resolution. 

 

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives, is in any way 

concerned or interested in the Resolution mentioned at Item No. 9 of the Notice. 
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ITEM NO 10 
 
The Board of Directors at their meeting held on June 30, 2015 has revised the remuneration 

payable to Mr. Riten Choudhury, Managing Director for the period from April 1, 2015 to 31st 

March 31, 2016. 

 

Pursuant to the provisions of Sections 197, 203 and other applicable provisions of the Companies 

Act, 2013, read with Schedule V to the said Act, remuneration to one managerial personnel, 

computed in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, requires the approval of 

the members by way of Special Resolution.  

 

Approval of the Central Government is not required since the total remuneration is within the 

limits specified under Schedule V. Mr. Riten Choudhury does not hold any equity shares of the 

Company nor have any direct or indirect interest or related to Directors or promoters of the 

Company. The Members of Remuneration Committee of the Directors had approved the 

remuneration of Mr. Riten Choudhury in its meeting held on 30th June 2015. 

 

The Directors recommend the resolutions at Item Nos.10 for approval of the members.  

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives, except Mr 

Riten Choudhury, to whom the resolution relates, is concerned or interested in the Resolution 

mentioned at Item No. 10 of the Notice. 

 

 

 

 

Date:  14th September 2015    By Order of the Board of Directors 

 

Place: Pune           

        Sd/- 

        Kavita Sethi Jain 

        Company Secretary 
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Form No. MGT-11 
Proxy form 

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management 

and Administration) Rules, 2014] 

Name of the Member(s)                                     

Registered Address                                              

E-mail Id Folio No /Client ID DP ID 

I/We, being the member(s) of ____________shares of the above named company. Hereby appoint 

Name : E-mail Id: 

Address: 

Signature , or failing him 

 

Name : E-mail Id: 

Address: 

Signature , or failing him 

 

Name : E-mail Id: 

Address: 

Signature , or failing him 

 

as my/ our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 10th Annual 

General Meeting of the company, to be held on the 30th day of September 2015 at 11.00 a.m. at 

Metropolitan, 4th Floor, Survey No. 21, Wakdewadi, Shivaji Nagar, Pune - 411005 and at any 

adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below: 

Resolution No. 

Sl. 

No. 

Resolution(S) Vote 

For  Against 

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of 
the Company for the Financial Year ended 31 March, 2015 and the 
Reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon; 
 

  

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Sanjay Dayal (DIN 02506378) 

who retires by rotation and being eligible offers himself for re-

appointment 

  

3. To appoint a Director in place of Ms. Samita Shah (DIN 02350176) 

who retires by rotation and being eligible offers herself for re-

appointment. 

  

4. Re-appointment of M/s. Deloitte, Haskins & Sells LLP , Chartered 

Accountants as Statutory Auditors & fixing their remuneration 

  

5. To appoint Mr. Sudam Maitra as Independent Director   

6.  To appoint Mr. Srikumar Menon as Independent Director   

7. To appoint Mr. Krishnava Dutt as Independent Director   

8. To appoint Mr. Patrick Finan as Director of the Company   

9.  To ratify the remuneration paid to M/s.B.M Sharma & Co, Cost 

Auditors for the year 2014-15 

  

10. Approval of Remuneration to Managing Director   
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* Applicable for investors holding shares in Electronic form. 

 

 

Signed this _____day of _____2015 

 

 

Signature of the shareholder across 

Revenue Stamp 

 

Signature of Shareholder        Signature of Proxy holder         

 

Note: 

1) This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the 

Registered Office of the Company not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the 

Meeting. 

2) The proxy need not be a member of the company  

 

 

 

  

Affix Revenue 
Stamps 
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ATTENDANCE SLIP 
(To be handed over at the entrance of the meeting hall) 

 

10th Annual General Meeting on 30th September 2015 
 

Full name of the members attending ________________________________________ 

(In block capitals) 

Ledger Folio No./Client ID No. ___________ No. of shares held: ___________________ 

Name of Proxy _____________________________________ 

(To be filled in, if the proxy attends instead of the member) 

I hereby record my presence at the 10th Annual General Meeting of the Tata Bluescope 

Steel Limited. Metropolitan, 4th Floor, Survey No. 21, Wakdewadi, Shivaji Nagar, Pune – 

411005 on Wednesday, the 30th Sep’2015 

 

 

 

(Member’s /Proxy’s Signature) 
 

Note: 

 

1) The Proxy, to be effective should be deposited at the Registered Office of the 

Company not less than FORTY EIGHT HOURS before the commencement of the meeting. 

 

2) A Proxy need not be a member of the Company. 

 

3) In the case of joint holders, the vote of the senior who tenders a vote, whether in 

person or by Proxy, shall be accepted to the exclusion of the vote of the other joint 

holders. Seniority shall be determined by the order in which the names stand in the 

Register of Members. 

 

4) The submission by a member of this form of proxy will not preclude such member 

from attending in person and voting at the meeting. 
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The Rout map of the address of the Company: 
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Tata BlueScope Steel Limited 

Board’s Report 

 

The Members, 

Your Directors hereby present their Tenth Annual Report on the business and operations of the Company and the 

accounts for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2015. 

Financial Results 

                (Rs. in Lakhs) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Dividend 

 

Since the Company, has not made profits during the year, the Directors have decided not to recommend any 

dividend on the paid up equity share capital of the Company. 
 

Macro-Economic Scenario and Industry Outlook 

Indian GDP witnessed a growth of ~7.3% in FY’15, contributed by factors such as expansion in manufacturing 

sector, improved investment scenario and stabilizing macro-economic fundamentals.  Indian GDP is projected to 

grow at 7.5% in FY’16 and 7.6% in FY’17 by IMF. Though project execution remained slow, but economy has started 

showing signs of modest recovery owing to policy reforms in FDI and clearance of pending projects with a focus on 

implementation. Indian finished steel demand registered a y-o-y growth of 3.1% in FY’15 and is expected at ~5 to 

6% in FY’16. Expected upward trend in construction activities will increase the demand for steel roofing & walling 

products in the coming years. 

Coated Steel Business 

Zn-Al coated steel products are majorly used in Infrastructure, Industrial and Retail segments for roofing walling 

application in India. Large infrastructure sectors in India are gradually shifting to Zn-Al coated steel products, 

considering product level benefits. In Industrial and warehousing sector Pre-Engineered Building (PEB) have gained 

wide acceptance. PEB is expected to grow at ~8 to 10% in FY’16 y-o-y. 

Indian Zn-Al coated steel market size was around 510,000 tons in FY’15. Zn-Al coated steel demand grew at 12% in 

FY’15 y-o-y and is expected to grow at a CAGR of ~11% during FY15-FY19. Domestic Zn-Al coated steel producers 

have dominated imports by limiting their share to 10% in FY’15. TBSL has two products namely COLORBOND® steel  

and ZINCALUME® steel  which are the quality leaders in  the Market place and hence enjoy a substantial premium 

Particulars 2014-2015 2013-14 

Profit & Loss Account   

Total Income 1,49,318.61 136,923.40 

Total Expenses 1,54,524.53 1,47,989.32 

EBIT 7,317.99 1,082.91 

Depreciation    

Interest 12,523.91 12,148.83 

EBT (5,205.92) (11,065.92) 

Taxation - - 

EAT (5,205.92) (11,065.92) 

Balance Brought Forward (53,598.74) 42,532.82 

Transitional Provision (8.07) - 

Balance Carried to Balance Sheet (58,812.73) (53,598.74) 
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over competition.  TBSL in this difficult market has managed to increase its market share by delivering on their 

value promise. To achieve an edge over competition TBSL introduced COLORBOND® steel with THERMATECH™ 

solar reflectance technology, it received a wide acceptance from architects and consultants. TBSL has increased its 

footprints in other application like Light Gauge Framing System and Solar Power. 

In view of improved future demand, stabilized operations, quicker response to customer needs and business 

development efforts, CS is well placed to gain domestic market share in the coming years. 

Building Products  (BP) Business 

Financial year 2014-15 was an eventful year for the Building Products business. DURASHINE® business registered a 

double digit growth  in  sales volume over FY 2013-14. DURASHINE® has won Asia’s Most Promising Brand Award 

(Roof and Wall Category) for FY 13-14 and is the market leader in retail segment with a substantial market  share.    

Inspite of the projects market showing a de-growth as compared to last year,   LYSAGHT® business could grow  in 

double digits   for   pull through sales volume..   This  business has enhanced the market development activities to 

increase penetration in growing infrastructure segment  and   has launched a new product to tap the potential of 

solar sector. LYSAGHT®  is  a market leader in conventional roofing/walling projects market. .  BP  established a new 

roll forming facility  near Pune to strengthen their  operations. The new roll forming facility has stabilized and is 

operating to near full capacity. In FY 2015-16,  BP  is planning to increase its sales volume by widening  their 

product basket, expanding reach and increasing brand awareness.   

Building Solutions Business 

At the end of FY15, Building Solutions business completed 2.2 million (17 months) Loss Time Injury (LTI) Free Man 

Hours at Hinjewadi plant, and 4.4 million (26 months) LTI Free Man Hours at Construction Sites.  

On the business performance front, FY15 started well, and the first quarter performance was close to plan. 

However, the expected market recovery did not happen, and volumes did not come through as anticipated.  Both 

production  and shipment  were higher than the previous year. During the year several steps were taken to 

increase order intake, improve order flow, and reduce cost and margin erosion. The focus on error reduction 

helped bring that cost down  by 33 %.  . 

Building Solutions continues to emphasize its key differentiators: On-time delivery, Leak-proof roof system, 

engineered excellence, and Safe project execution. As the industry recovers, and projects move ahead, Building 

Solutions is confident that its systems and processes will enable achievement of targets in FY16. 
 

Operations and Performance 
 

Your Company achieved a total revenue of Rs.143,750 Lacs during the financial year 2014-15 as compared to 

Rs.132,600/- Lacs for the financial year 2013-14. The Company ended the year with a loss of Rs.5,200 Lacs as 

compared to a loss of Rs.11,100 Lacs during the previous year’s – a reduction in loss of over Rs.5,800 Lacs.  This was 

achieved by delivering high quality products and services to customers at appropriate prices and various cost 

reduction initiatives that helped optimize the cost across the value chain. 
 

Human Resources Management: 
 

As of March 31, 2015, the employee strength of the organization stood at 931 as against 952 as of 31st March 

2014. A total of 72 employees were recruited during the year which also included campus hires from prestigious 

institutes ie Jadavpur University, NIT Rourkela and CoEP, Pune. Leadership development, Functional and Technical 

programmes were conducted across various locations ie Pune, Jamshedpur, Bhiwadi, Chennai and other sales 

offices. A ‘five-rating’ performance scale was introduced first time for staff employees to differentiate the top 1 % 

of talent against a rating of 5. On Industrial relations front, a peaceful and conducive working environment was 

maintained at all plant locations.  On the employee engagement front, under the banner of ‘Rainbow’ which is the 

flagship initiative in the Company to promote the formation of hobby clubs in 7 different areas (eg ‘Artwhiz’ for 

painters and clay artists, ‘Green Hornets’ for nature lovers and trekkers, etc), various programmes were conducted 

at different locations with an objective to create a positive association with the company and energy within the 

teams.   
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Particulars of Employees 

Disclosures pertaining to remuneration and other details as required under Section 197(12) of the Act, read with 

Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are annexed to 

this report as Annexure 1. 

In terms of the provisions of Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules 5(2) and 5(3) of the 

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, a statement showing the 

names and other particulars of employees drawing remuneration in excess of the limits set out in the said Rules 

forms part of the Report. 

However, having regard to the provisions of the first proviso to Section 136(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, the 

Annual Report excluding the aforesaid information is being sent to the Members of the Company. The said 

information is available for inspection at Registered Office of the Company during working hours. Any member 

interested in obtaining such information may write to the Company Secretary, at the registered office and the 

same will be furnished on request. Further the details are also available on the Company's website: 

tatabluescopesteel.com 

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)  

In accordance with provisions of Companies Act 2013 and rules made thereunder the Company has constituted 

committee of the directors as CSR committee. The Committee and the Board of Directors have reviewed the CSR 

policy of the Company which is available on the website of the Company. The Company has not earned any profits 

during the 3 immediate preceding financial years and hence the Company is not required to spend any amounts 

towards CSR. The CSR policy and the composition of CSR committee is attached herewith this report as Annexure 2. 

Corporate Governance  

Your Company is a Debt Listed Company and hence Clause 49 of the listing agreement is not applicable.  However, 

we ensure that we evolve and follow good corporate governance practices in order to boost long term shareholder 

value and also respect the rights of all stakeholders. 
 

Board Meetings 
 

During the financial year 2014-15, five Board Meetings and five Audit Committee Meetings were convened and 

held. The intervening gap between the Meetings was within the period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013. 
 

Remuneration Policy 
 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company has recommended and the Board has approved a 

Policy on Directors’ appointment and Removal including criteria for determine qualifications, positive attributes, 

independence of directors and other matters provided under section 178(3) of the Act. The Policy is attached as 

Annexure 3. 
 

Compensation Policy for Board and Senior Management 
 

Based on the recommendations of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board has approved the 

Remuneration Policy for Directors, KMP and all other employees of the Company. As part of the policy, the 

Company strives to ensure that: 

 

(a) The level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate 

Directors of the quality required to run the Company successfully; 
 

(b) Relationship between remuneration and performance is clear and meets appropriate performance 

benchmarks; and 
 

(c) Remuneration to Directors, KMP and senior management involves a balance between fixed and variable 

pay reflecting short and long-term performance objectives appropriate to the working of the Company and 

its goals. The Remuneration Policy for Directors, KMP and other employees is annexed to this report 

Annexure 4. 
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Board Evaluation 
 

The Board has done formal evaluation to evaluate the effectiveness of its functioning and that of the Committees 

and of individual directors by seeking their inputs on various aspects of Board/Committee Governance.  The 

Chairman of the Board had one-on-one meetings with the Independent Directors and the Chairman of the 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee had one-on-one meetings with the Executive and Non-Executive 

Directors. These meetings were intended to obtain Directors’ inputs on effectiveness of Board/Committee 

processes. The Board considered and discussed the inputs received from the Directors. Further, the Independent 

Directors at their meeting, reviewed the performance of Board, Chairman of the Board and of Non- Executive 

Directors. 
 

Independent Directors Declaration 

The Company has received the necessary declaration from each Independent Director in accordance with Section 

149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013, that he meets the criteria of independence as laid out in sub-section (6) of 

Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 

Directors and Key Managerial Personnel 
 

Separation  
 

Mr. Atul Gogna (DIN: 03493974), Mr. Simon Linge (DIN: 03558733) and Mr. Sudhansu Pathak (DIN: 06545101) had 

resigned as Directors of the Company w.e.f. 31st March 2015.  
 

 Further, Mr. Patrick Finan and Mr. Ian Cummin had resigned as the alternate Directors to Mr. Charlie Elias and Mr. 

Simon Linge, respectively, w.e.f March 31, 2015. 
 

Induction 
 

On the recommendations of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board appointed Mr. Sudam 

Maitra (DIN: 00035398), Mr. Srikumar Menon (DIN: 00470254) and Mr. Krishnava Satyaki Dutt (DIN: 02792753), as 

Independent Directors of the Company with effect from 31st March, 2015.  

Mr. Patrick Finan (DIN: 05274228) has been appointed as Additional Director of the Company w.e.f 31st March 

2015.  We seek your support in confirming the appointment of these directors in the ensuing AGM. 
 

 Mr. Atul Gogna and Mr. Ian Cummin have been appointed as Alternate Directors, to Mr. Patrick Finan and Mr. 

Charlie Elias, respectively w.e.f March 31, 2015. Mr. Suresh James Vedachalam Chelliah, was appointed as alternate 

Director to Mr. Sanjay Dayal w.e.f. 22nd April, 2015. 
 

 Reappointment 
  

As per the provisions of the Companies Act 2013, Mr. Sanjay Raghbir Dayal (DIN: 02506378) and Ms. Samita Shah 

(DIN: 02350176), Directors will retire at the ensuing Annual general Meeting and being eligible, seek 

reappointment. The Board recommends their reappointment.    
 

Key managerial personnel 
 

During the year, Mr.  Sanjay Kasture, Company Secretary and KMP of the Company resigned from the services of 

the Company. The resignation was effective from 26th December 2014.  

Consequent to Mr. Sanjay Kastures resignation the Board appointed Ms. Kavita Sethi Jain as Company Secretary 

and KMP of the Company. The appointment was effective 30th June, 2015. 
 

Directors’ Responsibility Statement 
 

Based on the framework of internal financial controls established and maintained by the Company, work 

performed by the internal, statutory, cost and secretarial auditors and external agencies, the reviews performed by 

Management and the relevant Board Committees, the Board, with the concurrence of the Audit Committee, is of 

the opinion that the Company’s internal financial controls were adequate and effective as on 31 March, 2015. 

Accordingly, pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 the Board of Directors to the best of their 

knowledge and ability confirm: 
 

a. that in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed 

along with proper explanation relating to material departures; 

b. that we have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and 

estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the 

Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the Company for that period; 
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c. that proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in 

accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company 

and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

d. that the annual accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis; 

e. that proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws were in place and that 

such systems were adequate and operating effectively; and 

f. that proper internal financial controls were laid down and that such internal financial controls are 

adequate and were operating effectively. 
 

Audit Committee 
 

The Audit Committee of the Company was reconstituted on March 31, 2015 and the Committee  comprises of Ms. 

Samita Shah (Chairperson), Mr. Sanjay Dayal, Mr. Krishnava Dutt, Mr. Srikumar Menon and Mr. Sudam Maitra. The 

Committee had adopted a charter for its functioning. The primary objective of the Committee is to monitor and 

provide effective supervision of the Management’s financial reporting process, to ensure accurate and timely 

disclosures, with the highest levels of transparency, integrity and quality of financial reporting. The Committee has 

met five times during the year. 
 

Internal Control System 
 

The Company has an internal control system, commensurate with the size, scale and complexity of its operations. 

The Company had appointed Price Waterhouse & Co, as internal auditors for the F.Y 2014-15. The scope and 

authority of the Internal Auditor were well defined. To maintain its objectivity and independence, the Internal 

Auditors reports to the audit Committee of the Board. The Internal Auditors monitors and evaluates the efficacy 

and adequacy of internal control systems in the Company, its compliance with operating systems, accounting 

procedures and policies at all locations of the Company. Based on the report of internal audit function, process 

owners undertake corrective action in their respective areas and thereby strengthen the controls. Significant audit 

observations and corrective actions thereon are presented to the Audit Committee of the Board. 
 

Vigil Mechanism : 
 

The Company has in place a Vigil Mechanism that provides a formal mechanism for all Directors, employees and 

vendors of the Company to approach the Ethics Counsellor/Chairman of the Audit Committee of the Board and 

make protective disclosures about the unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Code of 

Conduct (CoC).  
 

The Vigil Mechanism includes the Whistle Blower Policy for Directors, employees and the vendors. The Whistle 

Blower Policy for Directors and Employees is an extension of the CoC, that requires every Director or employee to 

promptly report to the Management any actual or possible violation of the Code or any event wherein he or she 

becomes aware of that which could affect the business or reputation of the Company. Similarly the Whistle Blower 

Policy provides protection to the Vendors from any victimisation or unfair trade practice by the Company. Under 

the Policy, every Director, employee or vendor of the Company has an assured access to the Ethics 

Counsellor/Chairman of the Audit Committee. 
 

Disclosure as per the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and 

Redressal) Act, 2013 
 

The Company has zero tolerance towards sexual harassment at the workplace and has adopted a policy on 

prevention, prohibition and redressal of sexual harassment at workplace in line with the provisions of the Sexual 

Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder.  

During the Financial Year 2014-15, the Company has not received any complaint of sexual harassment. 
 

Risk management policy 
 

The Company is exposed to inherent uncertainties similar to any other business, owing to the sector in which it 

operates. A key factor in determining a company’s ability to create a sustainable value, depends on the risks that 

the company is willing to take (at strategic and operational levels) and its ability to manage them effectively.   Many 

risks exist in a company’s operating environment and they emerge on a regular basis. The Company's Risk 

Management processes focusses on ensuring that these risks are identified on a timely basis and addressed. The 

Company has adopted risk management policy which is reviewed by the Audit Committee.  The Audit Committee 

reviews the risk management Policy, practices and actions deployed by the Management with respect to 

identification, impact assessment, monitoring and mitigation and reporting of key risks, while trying to achieve its 

business objectives. 
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Subsidiary and Associates  

We have one wholly owned foreign subsidiary as on 31 March, 2015. Based on the exemption provided in Section 

129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, we have not prepared consolidated financial statements of the Company 

including its subsidiary, for the financial year 2014-15. However, the report on the performance and financial 

position of the subsidiary and salient features of the financial statements in the prescribed Form AOC-1 is annexed 

to this report Annexure 5. 

In accordance with Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013, the audited financial statements and related 

information of the Company and audited financial statements of the subsidiary will be available on our website 

www.tatabluescopesteel.com. These documents will also be available for inspection during business hours at the 

registered office of the Company.  
 

Related Party Transactions 
 

There have been no materially significant related party transactions between the Company and the Directors, the 

management, the subsidiaries or the relatives except for those disclosed in the financial statements. However, 

contracts or arrangements with related parties as referred in Section 188(1) are disclosed in Form AOC-2 form part 

of this report as Annexure 6. 
 

Statutory Auditors:  
 

M/s Deloitte Haskins & Sells, Chartered Accountants, the statutory auditors of the Company retire at the ensuing 

Annual General Meeting. They have confirmed their eligibility under section 141 of the Companies Act 2013 for 

reappointment and have indicated their willingness to continue. The members are requested to consider the 

reappointment of the auditors from conclusion of the ensuing Annual general Meeting to next Annual General 

meeting.  
 

Cost Audit 
 

As per Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company is required to have the audit of its cost records 

conducted by a Cost Accountant in practice. In this connection, the Board of Directors of the Company has on the 

recommendation of the Audit Committee, approved the appointment of B. M. Sharma & Co as the Cost Auditors of 

the Company for the year ending 31 March, 2016, at a remuneration as may be decided between Management and 

Cost Auditor of the Company. 
 

Secretarial Audit Report  
 

Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 inter-alia requires every listed company to annex with its Board’s report, a 

Secretarial Audit Report given by a Company Secretary in practice, in the prescribed form.  
 

The Board of Directors appointed JDNASSA & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries to conduct the Secretarial 

Audit of the Company for Financial Year 2014-15 and their report is annexed to this Board report as Annexure 7. 
 

The Board has re-appointed JDNASSA & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries, as Secretarial Auditor to 

conduct Secretarial Audit of the Company for Financial Year 2015-16. 
 

Extract Of Annual Return: 
 

The details forming part of the extract of the Annual Return in Form MGT 9 as per provisions of Companies Act, 

2013 and rules thereto is annexed to this report as Annexure 8. 
 

Significant and Material Orders Passed by the Regulators or Courts 
 

There have been no significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the 

going concern status and Company’s operations. However, members' attention is drawn to the statement on 

contingent liabilities, commitments in the notes forming part of the Financial Statements. 
 

 Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments 
 

Particulars of loans, guarantees given and investments made during the year in accordance with Section 186 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 is annexed to this report as Annexure 9. 
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Conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo 
 

Details of the energy conservation, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo are annexed to 

this report as Annexure 10. 
 

Deposits 
 

During the year, the Company has not accepted any deposits under the Companies Act, 2013. 
 

Material changes and commitments, if any, affecting the financial position of the company which have 

occurred between the end of the financial year of the company to which the financial statements relate 

and the date of the report 
 

There has been no material change affecting the financial position of the company which have occurred between 

the end of the financial year of the company to which the financial statements relate and the date of the report. 
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Annexure 1 – Information pursuant to Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 

read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration 

of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014  

 

1. Ratio of the remuneration of each Director/KMP to the median remuneration of all the employees of 

the Company for the financial year: 

 

 
         

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Note: The above remuneration figures and calculations are based on the payments made during the Financial Year 2014-15 (It includes the 

fixed salaries for F Y 2014-15 and incentive remuneration of FY 2013-14, paid in FY 2014-15).     

 

2. Relationship between average increase in remuneration and company performance: 

 

Whilst the Company has a strong focus on cost, employee cost being one of the key areas for cost monitoring and 

control, the results of any structural initiatives needs to be measured over a long-term horizon and cannot be 

strictly compared with annual performance indicators. The performance of the Company was under pressure due 

to the challenges it faced during the year. Average increase in remuneration is guided by factors like inflation, 

normal salary revisions, external competitiveness and talent retention  

 

The average increase in remuneration during Financial Year 2014-15 was 10.65% (excluding Incentive and 

Statutory Bonus) as compared with previous financial year. Net revenues of the company during the financial year 

2014-15 increased by 9.4% to Rs 1,489 crores from Rs 1,361 crores in the previous year. The losses for the 

company reduced by 53% during the year. The Total employee cost for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2015 

was Rs. 75 crores against Rs. 71 crores for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2014. The total employee cost as 

a percentage of net revenues was 5.04% (last year 5.22%). 

 

3. Comparison of the remuneration of the KMP against the performance of the Company. 

 
Particulars                                                                                                                                                            (Rs Crs) 

Aggregate remuneration of KMP in Financial Year 2014-15  1.83

Revenue (MT) 1,489

Remuneration of KMPs (as % of revenue)  0.12

Profit before Tax (PBT) (52)

Remuneration of KMPs (as % of PBT) -

Note: The above remuneration figures and calculations are based on the payments made during the Financial Year 2014-15 (It includes the 

fixed salaries for F Y 2014-15 and incentive remuneration of FY 2013-14, paid in FY 2014-15). 

 
4. Since the equity shares of the Company are not listed with the Stock exchange variations in the market 

capitalization of the Company, price earnings ratio as at the closing date of the current financial year and 

previous financial year and percentage increase over decrease in the market quotations of the shares of the 

Company in comparison to the rate at which the Company came out with the last public offer, are Not 

Applicable on it. 

Median remuneration of all the employees of the Company for the Financial Year 

2014-15 

₹ 4,88,000  

The   percentage   increase   in   the   median remuneration of employees in the 

Financial Year 

11% 

The number of permanent employees on the rolls of Company as on 31 March, 

2015 

931 
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5. Average  increase already made in the salaries of employees other  than  the  managerial  personnel in the 

last financial year and its comparison with the increase in the managerial remuneration and justification 

thereof and point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial 

remuneration: 

Average percentage increase in salary of the Company’s employees was 10.65%. The total managerial 

remuneration for the Financial Year 2014-15 was ₹   0.99 cores as against ₹ 1.16 crores during the previous 

year. Rs. 0.99  Crs includes the performance Bonus for FY 13-14 of Mr. Harish Pathak who was with Company 

till 31st August 2013, and was Whole Time Director till 31st October 2013. His Performance Bonus of Rs. 0.20 

Crs was paid in FY 2014-15. Mr. Riten Choudhury took over as Managing Director from 1st September 2013. 

The percentage increase in remuneration to Mr. Riten Choudhury Managing Director during the Financial Year 

2014-15 was approximately 8.98 %. 

6. Comparison of remuneration of the KMP against the performance of the company: 

 

sl. 

no. 

 
Particulars of 

Remuneration 

 
Key Managerial Personnel 

  Mr. 

Harish 

Pathak 

Mr. 

Riten 

Choudhu

Mr. Suresh 

James 

Chelliah 

Mr. Sanjay 

Kasture 

  Whole 

Time 

MD CFO Company 

Secretary ** 
1 Remuneration in FY 15 (₹ 

crores) 

0.20 0.80 0.72 0.12 

2 Revenue (₹ crores) 1,489 

3 Remuneration as % of 

Revenue 

0.01  0.05 0.05 0.01 

4 Profit before Tax (PBT) (₹ 

crores) 

(52) 

5 Remuneration as % of PBT - - -  

 Note: The above remuneration are based on the amounts paid during the Financial Year 2014-15  (It includes the  

            fixed salaries for F Y 2014-15 and incentive remuneration of FY 2013-14,  paid in FY 2014-15). 

*The remuneration of Rs. 0.20 Crs paid to Mr Pathak, was the incentive remuneration for  

   FY 2013-14, which was paid in FY 2014-15  

       **Part of the year 
 

7. The key parameters for any variable component of remuneration availed by the directors/ managing 

Director: 
 

Remuneration to the Managing Director involve balance between fixed and variable pay reflecting short and 

long-term performance objective appropriate to the working of the Company, its goals, for attracting and 

retaining the best talent.  
 

8. The ratio of the remuneration of the highest paid director to that of the employees who are not directors 

but receive  remuneration in excess of the highest paid director during the year: 
 

Not applicable since no employee of the Company received remuneration in excess of the highest paid 

director, i.e. MD. 
 

9. Remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company. 

 

                                                                                                                                                 Sd/-  

Place: Pune         Sanjay Dayal 

Date: 14th September 2015       Chairman 
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Annexure 2 

 

Brief outline of the Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy: 

The CSR policy as approved by the Board is available on the Company’s website. The Company’s CSR is in alignment 

with the Tata Group focus initiatives – Education, Health, Livelihoods and Rural and Urban infrastructure. Besides, it 

will also undertake Interventions in the areas of sports, disaster relief, environment and ethnicity all aimed at 

improving the quality of life of the communities. 
 

Composition of CSR Committee of the Board:  
The CSR Committee of the Board comprises of Mr. Sanjay Dayal (Chairman), Mr. Anand Sen and Mr. Srikumar 

Menon. 
 

CSR expenditure  
The Company’s average net profit of the immediately preceding financial years is negative as the Company had 

losses during these years, hence CSR spend was not mandatory for FY 2014-15. 

 

Responsibility Statement 

We hereby affirm that the implementation and monitoring of CSR policy, is in compliance with the CSR objective 

and Policy of the Company  

 

            

Place: Pune 

Date: 14th September 2015              Sd/- 

      Sanjay Dayal 

                                                                                                                                     Chairman of CSR Committee                    
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Annexure 3 - Policy on Appointment and Removal of Directors 

1. Introduction 

 

1.1. In terms of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, and rules made thereunder, as amended from time to 

time, the Committee has formulated this policy on appointment and removal of Directors. The Policy has 

been adopted by the NRC vide its resolution dated June 30, 2015 and approved by the Board of Directors 

vide its resolution dated June 30, 2015 
 

1.2. This policy shall act as a guideline for determining qualifications, positive attributes and (as required for 

Independent Directors) independence of a Director and matters relating to the appointment and removal of 

Directors, but shall at all times be subject to the provisions of the Charter Documents. 

 

2. Objective of the Policy 

 

2.1 To lay down criteria and terms and conditions with regards to the identification of persons who are qualified 

to become Directors (executive, non-executive and independent) including their qualifications, positive 

attributes and independence [CA Sec. 178] (independence as required for Independent Directors) and who 

may be appointed as the Senior Management of the Company.  

 

3. Appointment of Directors 

 

This Policy enumerates guidelines to be used by NRC in making recommendations to the Board for 

selecting/appointing/re-appointing and removal of a Director. 
 

For all the above stated matters, any Shareholder may make suggestions from time to time, to Chairman, NRC or to 

a member of the NRC, who may incorporate the same while recommending to the Board.  Shareholders may also 

make recommendations directly to the Board.  
 

3.1 The NRC must assess skill-sets the Board needs given the strategies, challenges faced by the Company.  
 

3.2 In making recommendations to the Board for selecting individuals for appointment/re-appointment/removal 

of directors, the NRC to  refer to the following guidelines/policies: 

3.2.1 Board  Membership Criteria (Refer Schedule A) 

3.2.2 Board Diversity Policy, if any, framed as per the requirement of law (Refer Schedule B) 

3.2.3 Criteria for determining independence of directors (in case of appointment of Independent Directors 

(Refer Schedule C) 
 

3.3 The NRC may request candidature from the Shareholders. 
 

3.4 NRC members (either jointly/individually, as delegated) shall meet the potential candidate and assess his/her 

suitability for the role.  
 

3.5 NRC to recommend the appointment of shortlisted candidate to the Board for its consideration.  
 

3.6 Emergency Succession: If position of a Director suddenly becomes vacant by reason of death or other 

unanticipated occurrence, the NRC shall convene a special meeting at the earliest opportunity to make 

recommendations to the Board to fill such vacancy.  

 
 

4. Policy Implementation 

 

4.1 The Committee is responsible for recommending this Policy to the Board. 

 

4.2 The Board is responsible for approving and overseeing implementation of this Policy (with the support of the 

Committee) 
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5. Review of the Policy 

This Policy will be reviewed and reassessed by the Committee as and when required and appropriate 

recommendations shall be made to the Board to update this Policy based on changes that may be brought about 

due to any regulatory amendments or otherwise. The Board may also review the Policy as it sees fit. 
 

6. Compliance Responsibility 

 

Compliance of this policy shall be the responsibility of the Company Secretary of the Company who shall have the 

power to ask for any information or clarifications from the management in this regard.  

 

Schedule A 

Board Membership Criteria 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee works with the Board to determine the appropriate characteristics, 

skills, and experience for the Board as a whole and its individual members with the objective of having a Board with 

diverse backgrounds and experience in business, government, education, and public service.  Characteristics 

expected of all directors include independence of judgment, integrity, high personal and professional ethics, sound 

business judgment, ability to participate constructively in deliberations and willingness to exercise authority in a 

collective manner. 

In evaluating the suitability of individual Board members, the Committee considers many factors, including general 

understanding of marketing, finance, operations management, public policy, international relations, legal, 

governance and other disciplines relevant to the success of the Company in today’s business environment; 

understanding of the Company's business; experience in dealing with strategic issues and long-term perspectives; 

maintaining an independent familiarity with the external environment in which the company operates and 

especially in the directors particular field of expertise; educational and professional background; personal 

accomplishment; and geographic, gender, age, and ethnic diversity. 

The Board evaluates each individual in the context of the Board as a whole, with the objective of having a group 

that can best perpetuate the success of the Company's business and represent stakeholders interests through the 

exercise of sound judgment, using its diversity of experience.  

In determining whether to recommend a director for re-election, the Committee also considers the director’s past 

attendance at meetings, participation in meetings and contributions to the activities of the Board, and the results 

of the most recent Board self-evaluation. 

Board members are expected to rigorously prepare for, attend and participate in all Board and applicable 

committee meetings.  Each member is expected to ensure that their other current and planned future 

commitments do not materially interfere with the responsibilities at TBSL. 

 

Schedule B 

Board Diversity Policy 

1. Purpose 

The need for diversity in the Board has come into focus post the changes in the provisions of the Companies Act, 

2013 (“Act”).    

The NRC has framed this policy to set out the approach to diversity on the Board of the Company (“Policy”). 

 

2. Scope 

This Policy is intended to guide the NRC in recommending candidates for appointment to the Board of the 

Company. 

 

3. Policy Statement 

The Company recognizes the importance of diversity in its success. It is important that the Company has a diverse 

Board. 

A diverse Board will bring in different set of expertise and perspectives. The combination of Board having different 

skill set, industry experience, varied cultural and geographical background and belonging to different race and 

gender will bring a variety of experience and viewpoints which will add to the strength of the Company.  

While all appointments to the Board are made on merit, the diversity of Board in aggregate will be of immense 

strength to the Board in guiding the Company successfully through various geographies. 
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The Committee reviews and recommends appointments of new directors to the Board. In reviewing and 

determining the Board composition, the Committee will consider the merit, skill, experience, race, gender and 

other diversity of the Board. 

To meet the objectives of driving diversity and an optimum skill mix, the Committee may seek the support of the 

Shareholders.  

 

4. Monitoring and Reporting 

The Committee will report annually, in the corporate governance section of the Annual Report of the Company, the 

process it employed in making recommendations for Board appointments, if required by the law. The report will 

include summary of this Policy including purpose and the progress made in achieving the same. 

 

5. Review of the Policy 

This Policy will be reviewed and reassessed by the Committee as and when required and appropriate 

recommendations shall be made to the Board to update this Policy based on changes that may be brought about 

due to any regulatory amendments or otherwise. The Board may also review the Policy as it sees fit. 

 

6. Compliance Responsibility 

Compliance of this policy shall be the responsibility of the Company Secretary of the Company who shall have the 

power to ask for any information or clarifications from the management in this regard. 

 

 

Schedule c 

Criteria for determining independence of Directors  

1. Purpose 

The purpose of this policy is to define guidelines that will be used by the Board to assess the independence 

of Directors of the Company, with respect to the appointment of Independent Directors.  
 

Independence Guidelines 

A Director is considered independent if the Board makes an affirmative determination after a review of all 

relevant information. The Board will follow the requirements of law in this regard, including section 149(6) of 

the Act, as may be amended from time to time.  For reference, section 149(6) of the Act and certain 

definitions used in that section are set out below.   

Section 149(6) - An independent director in relation to a company, means a director other than a managing 

director or a whole-time director or a nominee director,—who, in the opinion of the Board, is a person of 

integrity  and possesses relevant expertise and experience;  

a) i. who is or was not a promoter of the company or its holding, subsidiary or associate   company;  

ii. who is not related to promoters or directors in the company, its holding, subsidiary or associate 

company;  

b) has or had no pecuniary relationship with the company, its holding, subsidiary or associate company, or 

their promoters, or directors, during the two immediately preceding financial  years or during the current 

financial year;  

c) none of whose relatives has or had pecuniary relationship or transaction with the company, its holding, 

subsidiary or associate company, or their promoters, or directors, amounting to two per cent. or more of 

its gross turnover  or total income or fifty lakh rupees or such higher amount  as may be prescribed, 

whichever is lower, during the  two immediately preceding financial years or during the  current financial 

year;  

d)  who, neither himself nor any of his relatives—  
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i. holds or has held the position of a key managerial  personnel or is or has been employee of the company or 

its holding, subsidiary or associate company in any of the three financial years immediately preceding the 

financial year in which he is proposed to be appointed;  

ii.  is or has been an employee or proprietor or a partner, in any of the three financial years immediately 

preceding the financial year in which he is proposed to be appointed, of—  

(A) a firm of auditors or company secretaries in practice or cost auditors of the company or its  holding, 

subsidiary or associate company; or  

(B) any legal or a consulting firm that has or had  any transaction with the company, its holding, subsidiary or 

associate company amounting to ten per cent. or more of the gross turnover of such firm;  

iii. holds together with his relatives two per cent. or more of the total voting power of the company; or  

iv. is a Chief Executive or director, by whatever name called, of any non-profit organization that receives 

twenty-five per cent. or more of its receipts from the company, any of its promoters, directors or its 

holding, subsidiary or associate company or that holds two per cent. or more of the total voting power of 

the company; or  

e) who possesses such other qualifications as may be prescribed. 

As per rule 5 of the Companies Appointment and Qualification of Directors Rules 2014: 

An independent director shall possess appropriate skills, experience and knowledge in one or more fields of 

finance, law, management, sales, marketing, administration, research, corporate governance, technical 

operations or other disciplines related to the company’s business. 

Definitions in addition to those provided above (as extracted from the act) 

1.    “Nominee director” means a director nominated by any financial institution in pursuance of the provisions of 

any law for the time being in force, or of any agreement, or appointed by any government or any other 

person to represent its interests. [Companies Act 2013 – 149 Explanation]  

2.    “Associate company”, in relation to another company, means a company in which that other company has a 

significant influence, but which is not a subsidiary company of the company having such influence and 

includes a joint venture company. [Sec 2(6) of CA, 2013]   

Explanation.—For the purposes of this clause, “significant influence” means control of at least twenty per 

cent. of total share capital, or of business decisions under an agreement; 

3.    “Relative”, with reference to a person, means anyone who is related to another if: (i) they are members of 

Hindu Undivided Family; (ii) if they are husband and wife; or (iii) if one person is related to the other in such 

manner as may be prescribed. [CA Sec. 2(77)] 

As per rule 4 of the Companies (Specification of Definitions Details) Rules 2014, a person shall be deemed to 

be the relative of another, if he or she is related to another in the following manner, namely – (1) Father 

(includes step-father), (2) Mother (includes step-mother), (3) Son (includes step-son), (4) Son’s wife, (5) 

Daughter, (6) Daughter’s husband, (7) Brother (includes step-brother), (8) Sister (includes step-sister)  

4.    “Holding company” has the meaning given in the Act. 

5.    “Subsidiary” and “subsidiary company” have the meaning given in the Act.  

 

 

25 of 89.



 

 

Annexure 4 - Remuneration Policy of Directors, KMPs and other employees 

The philosophy for remuneration of directors, Key Managerial Personnel (“KMP”) and all other employees of TBSL 

(“Company”) is based on the commitment of fostering a culture of leadership with trust. The remuneration policy is 

aligned to this philosophy.  

This remuneration policy has been prepared pursuant to the provisions of Section 178(3) of the Companies Act, 

2013 (“Act”). In case of any inconsistency between the provisions of law and this remuneration policy, the 

provisions of the law shall prevail and the company shall abide by the applicable law. While formulating this policy, 

the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (“NRC”) has considered the factors laid down under Section 178(4) 

of the Act, which are as under: 

“(a) the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate directors 

of the quality required to run the company successfully; 

(b) relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance benchmarks; and 

(c) remuneration to directors, key managerial personnel and senior management involves a balance between fixed 

and incentive pay reflecting short and long-term performance objectives appropriate to the working of the 

company and its goals” 

For all matters related to remuneration to directors, the Shareholders may make suggestions from time to time, to 

Chairman, NRC or to members of the NRC, who may incorporate the same while recommending to the Board. 

All remuneration of Directors and KMP must be approved by the Board. 

Key principles governing this remuneration policy are as follows:  

1. Remuneration for independent directors and non-independent non-executive directors  
 

1.1. Overall remuneration should be reflective of the size of the company, complexity of the sector/ industry/ 

company’s operations and the company’s capacity to pay the remuneration. 
 

1.2. Independent directors (“ID”) and non-independent non-executive directors (“NED”) may be paid sitting 

fees (for attending the meetings of the Board and of committees of which they may be members). 

Quantum of sitting fees and NED Commission may be subject to review on a periodic basis, as required. 

 
 

1.3. Within the parameters prescribed by law, the payment of sitting fees and commission will be 

recommended by the NRC for adoption to the Board.  
 

1.4. Overall remuneration (sitting fees and commission) should be reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain 

and motivate directors aligned to the requirements of the company (taking into consideration the 

challenges faced by the company and its future growth imperatives).  
 

1.5. Overall remuneration practices should be consistent with recognized best practices.  
 

1.6. The aggregate commission payable to all the NEDs and IDs will be recommended by the NRC to the Board 

based on company’s performance, profits, return to investors, shareholder value creation and any other 

significant qualitative parameters as may be decided by the Board.  
 

1.7. The NRC will recommend to the Board the quantum of commission for each director based upon the 

outcome of the evaluation process which is driven by various factors including attendance and time spent 

in the Board and committee meetings, individual contributions at the meetings and contributions made by 

directors other than in meetings.  
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1.8. In addition to the sitting fees and commission, the company may pay to any director such fair and 

reasonable expenditure, as may have been incurred by the director while performing his/ her role as a 

director of the company. This could include reasonable expenditure incurred by the director for attending 

Board/ Board committee meetings, general meetings,  court convened meetings, meetings with 

shareholders/ creditors/ management, site visits, induction and training (organized by the company for 

directors) and in obtaining professional advice from independent advisors in the furtherance of his/ her 

duties as a director. 
 

2. Remuneration for managing director (“MD”)/ executive directors (“EDs”)/ KMP/ rest of the 

employees 
 

2.1. The extent of overall remuneration should be sufficient to attract and retain talented and qualified 

individuals suitable for every role. Hence remuneration should be  

2.1.1. Market competitive (market for every role is defined as companies from which the company attracts 

talent or companies to which the company  loses talent) 

2.1.2. Driven by the role played by the individual,  

2.1.3. Reflective of size of the company, complexity of the sector/ industry/ company’s operations and the 

company’s capacity to pay, 

2.1.4. Consistent with recognized best practices and  

2.1.5. Aligned to any regulatory requirements. 
 

2.2. In terms of remuneration mix or composition,  
 

2.2.1. The remuneration mix for the MD/ EDs is as per the contract approved by the shareholders. In case of 

any change, the same would require the approval of the shareholders.  

2.2.2. Basic/ fixed salary is provided to all employees to ensure that there is a steady income in line with 

their skills and experience. 

2.2.3. In addition to the basic/ fixed salary, the company may provide employees with certain perquisites, 

allowances and benefits to enable a certain level of lifestyle and to offer scope for savings and tax 

optimization, where possible. The company may also provide all employees with a social security net 

(subject to limits) by covering medical expenses and hospitalization through re-imbursements or 

insurance cover and accidental death and dismemberment through personal accident insurance.  

2.2.4. The company provides retirement benefits as applicable.  

2.2.5. In addition to the basic/ fixed salary, benefits, perquisites and allowances as provided above, the 

company may provide MD/ EDs such remuneration by way of bonus/performance linked incentive 

and/or commission calculated with reference to the net profits of the company in a particular 

financial year, as may be determined by the Board subject to the overall ceilings stipulated in Section 

197 of the Act.  The specific amount payable to the MD/ EDs would be based on performance as 

evaluated by the Board or the NRC and approved by the Board. 

2.2.6. The company may provide the rest of the employees a performance linked bonus and/or 

performance linked incentive. The performance linked bonus/performance linked incentive would 

be driven by the outcome of the performance appraisal process and the performance of the 

company.  

 

3. Remuneration payable to Director for services rendered in other capacity 

The remuneration payable to the Directors shall be inclusive of any remuneration payable for services 

rendered by such director in any other capacity unless: 

o The services rendered are of a professional nature; and 

o The NRC is of the opinion that the director possesses requisite qualification for the practice of the 

profession. 
 

4. Premium on Insurance policy  
 

4.1. Where any insurance is taken by the Company on behalf of the Company’s NEDs, for indemnifying them 

against any liability, the premium paid on such insurance shall not be treated as part of the remuneration. 

4.2. Where any insurance is taken by the Company on behalf of the Company’s MD/EDs, KMP and any other 

employees for indemnifying them against any liability in respect of any negligence, default, misfeasance, 

breach of duty or breach of trust for which they may be guilty in relation to the company, the premium 
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paid on such insurance shall not be treated as part of the remuneration. Provided that if such person is 

proved to be guilty, the premium paid on such insurance shall be treated as part of the remuneration.    

5. Policy implementation 

       The NRC is responsible for recommending the remuneration policy to the Board. The Board is responsible for 

       approving and overseeing implementation of the remuneration policy. 

6. Review of the Policy 

       This Policy will be reviewed and reassessed by the NRC as and when required and appropriate  

       recommendations shall be made to the Board to update this Policy based on changes that may be brought  

        about due to any regulatory amendments or otherwise.  The Board may also review the Policy as it sees fit. 

7. Compliance Responsibility 

       Compliance of this policy shall be the responsibility of the Company Secretary of the company who shall have  

       the  power to ask for any information or clarification from the management in this regard.
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Annexure 5 - Form AOC-1 

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014) 

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate companies/joint 

ventures 

 

Part “A”: Subsidiaries 

(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Rs.)               

(Amount in Lakhs) 

Sl. No. Particulars Details 

1 Name of the subsidiary BlueScope Lysaght Lanka Private 

Limited 

2 Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if different from 

the holding company’s reporting period 

- 

3 Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last date of 

the relevant Financial year in the case of foreign subsidiaries 

Sri Lanka Rupee 

Exchange Rate: 1LKR = 04692 INR  

 

 

4 Share capital 513.84 

5 Reserves & surplus 615.47 

6 Total assets 3,367.01 

7 Total Liabilities 2,237.70 

8 Investments - 

9 Turnover 6,778.95 

10 Profit before taxation 114.20 

11 Provision for taxation 24.65 

12 Profit after taxation 89.55 

13 Proposed Dividend - 

14 % of shareholding 100% 

 

 

 

 

 

On behalf of the Board of Directors 

            

 

                                                              Sd/- 

Place: Pune         Sanjay Dayal 

Date: 14th September 2015       Chairman 
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   Annexure 6 - Form AOC -2 

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies 

(Accounts) Rules, 2014. 
 

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties 

referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms length transaction 

under third proviso thereto. 

 

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis. - N.A. 

 

2. Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis. 

Sr. 

No 

Name (s) of the 

related party & 

nature of 

relationship 

Nature of 

contracts/arrangements 

/transaction 

Duration of 

the 

contracts/ 

arrangement

s/transaction 

Salient terms of 

the contracts or 

arrangements 

or transaction 

including the 

value, if any 

Date of 

approval 

by the 

Board 

Amount 

paid as 

advances

, if any 

1 BlueScope 

Lysaght Lanka 

Private Limited 

(Subsidiary 

Company) 

 

Sale of goods (Coils & 

Component) 

 

Apr`14 – 

Mar`15 

 

Rs. 1,263.20 

Lacs 

 

Ongoing 

Basis 

NIL 

2 BlueScope Steel 

India Private 

Limited (BSIPL) 

 

Expenses incurred 

(reimbursement of 

TDS/expenses paid by 

TBSL on behalf of BSIPL) 

Apr`14 – 

Mar`15 

Rs. 6.54 Lacs Ongoing 

Basis 

NIL 

 

 

On behalf of the Board of Directors 

            

 

                                                                 Sd/- 

Place: Pune         Sanjay Dayal 

Date: 14th September 2015       Chairman 
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Annexure 7 - Form No. MR-3 

Secretarial Audit Report 

For The Financial Year ended 31st March 2015 

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the  

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

 
To, 

The Members 

Tata BlueScope Steel Limited 

 

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to 

good corporate practices by Tata BlueScope Steel Limited. (Hereinafter called “the Company”). Secretarial Audit 

was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory 

compliances of the Company and expressing our opinion thereon.  

 

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 

maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized 

representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the company has, 

during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March 2015 (“Audit Period”), complied with the 

statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-

mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 

 

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the 

Company for the financial year ended on 31st March 2015 according to the provisions of: 

 

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under; 

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made there under; 

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under; 

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the extent of 

Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings; 

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 

(‘SEBI Act’) :- 

 

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 

Regulations, 2011 [Not applicable during the Audit Period] 

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992; 

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2009; [Not applicable during the Audit Period] 

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock 

Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999; [Not applicable during the Audit Period] 

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; [Not 

applicable during the Audit Period] 

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008; 

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 

Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; 

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998; [Not applicable 

during the Audit Period] 
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 (vi) OTHER APPLICABLE LAWS: 

1. Factories Act, 1948 and The Factories (Control of Industrial Major Accidents Hazards) Rules 2003 

2. Payment of Wages Act, 1936, 

3. The Minimum Wages Act, 1948, 

4. Employees’ State Insurance Act, 1948, 

5. Provident Fund Act 1952 & Employees Pension Scheme 1995, 

6. The Payment of Bonus Act, 1965,  

7. Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972,  

8. Contract Labour (Regulation & Abolition) Act 1970 

9. The Maternity benefit Act 1961 

10. The Water (Prevention & Control of Pollution) Act, 1974, Read with Water (Prevention &    

Control of Pollution) Rules, 1975, 

11. The Maharashtra Shops & Establishments Act 1948 

12. Employees Compensation Act 1923 

13. Information Technology Act 2000 

14. The Sexual Harassment of Women At Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal Act) 2013 
 
We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

 

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India. (Not applicable to the Company 

during the audit period). 

 

(ii) The Listing Agreement entered into by the Company with National Stock Exchange of India Limited, Mumbai in 

respect of Debentures Issued by the Company 

 

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, 

Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above. 

We further report that:-  

 

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-

Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the board of directors that took 

place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act. 

 

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda 

were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and 

clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. Majority 

decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured and recorded as part of the minutes. 

 

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and 

operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and 

guidelines. 
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We further report that during the audit period the company has  

(i) Obtained Shareholders’ approval at the Annual general meeting held on 11th September 2014 pursuant to 

provisions of Section 180 (1) ( c) of the Companies Act, 2013; for borrowings in excess of the aggregate 

of paid-up capital and free reserves of the Company  

(ii) Repaid the term loan in full to Syndicate Bank and has thereby released the charge on immovable and 

movable properties of the Company 

(iii) Obtained Shareholders’ approval at the Extra-ordinary General Meeting held on 13th November 2014 

pursuant to provisions of Section 180 (1) ( a) of the Companies Act, 2013; for mortgage/ hypothecation 

of immovable/ movable property of the Company as security for the Loan facility availed from State 

Bank of India 

(iv) Sought Shareholders’ approval pursuant to Section 180 (1) (a)s’ approval for the same  

FOR JDNASSA & ASSOCIATES 

COMPANY SECRETARIES 

 
_____Sd/-______ 
JAYAVANT BHAVE 

FCS No. 4266 

CP No. 3068 

Place :Pune 

Date : 16th August 2015 

 

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as ‘ANNEXURE A’ and forms an integral 

part of this report. 
 

Annexure A 

To, 

The Members 

Tata BlueScope Steel Limited 
 

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is 

to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit. 

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about 

the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that 

correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide 

a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the 

Company. 

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and 

regulations and happening of events etc. 

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the 

responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis. 

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy 

or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

 

FOR JDNASSA & ASSOCIATES 

COMPANY SECRETARIES 

 

 

______Sd/-______ 

JAYAVANT BHAVE 

FCS No. 4266 

CP No. 3068 

 

Place : Pune 

Date : 16th August 2015 
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Annexure 8 - Form No. MGT 9 

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN 

 

As on financial year ended on 31.03.2014 

 

Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Company (Management & 

Administration) Rules, 2014. 

 

I. REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS: 

 

1. CIN U45209PN2005PLC020270 

2. Registration Date 9th February 2005 

3. Name of the Company Tata BlueScope Steel Limited 

4. Category/Sub-category of 

the Company 

Public Limited listed Company having share capital (Debentures 

are listed but not the equity share capital)  

5. Address of the Registered 

office  & contact details 

Metropolitan, Final Plot No. 27, Survey No.21, 

Wakdewadi, Shivajinagar, Pune 411005 

Phone No: +91 20 66218000 

Fax No: +91 20 66218001 

6. Whether listed company Yes (Debentures are listed but not the equity share capital) 

7. Name, Address & contact 

details of the Registrar & 

Transfer Agent, if any. 

TSR Dharashaw Limited 

6-10,Haji Moose Patrawala Ind Estate20, 

Dr E Moses Road, Near Famous Studio, 

Mahalaxmi Mumbai - 400 011 

022- 66178554   022- 66178548 
 

 

II. Principal business activities of the Company (All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total 

turnover of the company shall be stated) 

 

S. No. Name and Description of main 

products / services 

NIC Code of the 

Product/service 

 

%  to total turnover of the 

company 

1 Pre Engineered Buildings 251 13%  

2 Color Coated & Zinc & Aluminum 

coated Steel, Roll formed Roofing 

and Walling profiles 

 

241 87% 

 

III. Particulars of holding, subsidiary and associate companies - 

Sr.  

No 

Name and Address of 

the Company 

CIN/GLN Holding/Subsidiary/ 

Associate 

% of 

Shares 

Held 

Applicable 

Section 

1 BlueScope Lysaght 

Lanka Pvt. Ltd  

PV8619 Subsidiary 100% 2(87) 
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IV. Share Holding Pattern (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity) 

  Category-wise Share Holding 

 

Category of 

Shareholders 

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year[As on 31-March-

2014] 

No. of Shares held at the end of the year[As on 31-March-

2015] 

% Change 

during 

the year       

  Demat Physical Total % of Total 

Shares 

Demat Physical Total % of Total 

Shares  

A. Promoters                   

(1) Indian          

a) Individual/ HUF - - - - - - - -  

b) Central Govt - - - - - - - -  

c) State Govt(s) - - - - - - - -  

d) Bodies Corp. - 86,60,00,000 86,60,00,000 100.00 - 86,60,00,000 86,60,00,000 100.00 NIL 

e) Banks / FI - - - - - - - -  

f) Any other - - - - - - - -  

Total 

shareholding of 

Promoter (A) 

 86,60,00,000 86,60,00,000 100.00  

 

 

 

86,60,00,000 

 

 

 

86,60,00,000 100.00 NIL 

           

B. Public 

Shareholding          

1. Institutions - - - - - - - -  

a) Mutual Funds - - - - - - - -  

b) Banks / FI - - - - - - - -  

c) Central Govt - - - - - - - -  

d) State Govt(s) - - - - - - - -  

e) Venture Capital 

Funds - - - - - - - -  

f) Insurance 

Companies - - - - - - - -  
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g) FIIs          

 h) Foreign 

Venture Capital 

Funds - - - - - - - -  

i) Others (specify) - - - - - - - -  

Sub-total (B)(1):-          

2. Non-

Institutions          

a) Bodies Corp. - - - - - - - -  

i) Indian - - - - - - - -  

ii) Overseas - - - - - - - -  

b) Individuals - - - - - - - -  

i) Individual 

shareholders 

holding nominal 

share capital up to 

Rs. 1 lakh - - - - - - - -  

ii) Individual 

shareholders 

holding nominal 

share capital in 

excess of Rs 1 lakh 
- - - - - - - -  

c) Others (specify) - - - - - - - -  

Non Resident 

Indians - - - - - - - -  

Overseas 

Corporate Bodies - - - - - - - -  

Foreign Nationals - - - - - - - -  

Clearing Members - - - - - - - -  

Trusts - - - - - - - -  

Foreign Bodies - D 

R - - - - - - - -  

Sub-total (B)(2):-          
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Total Public 

Shareholding 

(B)=(B)(1)+ (B)(2) - - - - - - - -  

C. Shares held by 

Custodian for 

GDRs & ADRs - - - - - - - -  

Grand Total 

(A+B+C)  86,60,00,000 86,60,00,000 100.00 NIL 

 

 

 

86,60,00,000 

 

 

 

86,60,00,000 100.00 NIL 
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B) Shareholding of Promoter- 

 

S

N 
Shareholder’s Name 

Shareholding at the beginning of the year Shareholding at the end of the year  

  

  No. of Shares % of total Shares 

of the company 

%of Shares Pledged / 

encumbered to total 

shares 

No. of Shares % of total 

Shares of the 

company 

%of Shares 

Pledged / 

encumbered to 

total shares 

% change in 

shareholding 

during the year 

1 BlueScope Steel Asia 

Holding PTY Ltd. 43,29,99,997 50.00 NIL 43,29,99,997 50.00 NIL 

  

NIL 

2 Tata Steel Limited 43,29,99,997 50.00 NIL 43,29,99,997 50.00 NIL NIL 

3 Tata Steel Limited 

J/W Mr. Anand Sen 1 0.00 NIL 1 0.00 NIL 

 

NIL 

4 Tata Steel Limited 

J/W Mr. N.K Mishra 1 0.00 NIL 1 0.00 NIL 

NIL 

5 Tata Steel Limited 

J/W Mr. H. M. 

Nerurkar 1 0.00 NIL 1 0.00 NIL 

 

 

NIL 

6 BlueScope Steel Asia 

Holding PTY Ltd. 

J/W Mr. Wayne 

Armour 1 0.00 NIL 1 0.00 NIL 

 

 

 

NIL 

7 BlueScope Steel Asia 

Holding PTY Ltd. 

J/W Mr. Sanjay 

Dayal 1 0.00 NIL 1 0.00 NIL 

 

 

 

NIL 

8 BlueScope Steel Asia 

Holding PTY Ltd. 

J/W Mr. Simon Linge 1 0.00 NIL 1 0.00 NIL 

 

 

NIL 
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C) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)- No Change 

SN Particulars Shareholding at the beginning of the year Cumulative Shareholding during the year 

No. of shares % of total 

shares of the 

company 

No. of shares % of total 

shares of the 

company 

 At the beginning of the year     

 Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters 

Shareholding during the year specifying the 

reasons for increase / decrease (e.g. allotment 

/transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.): 

    

 At the end of the year     
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D) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders:  

     (Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs): NIL 

SN For Each of the Top 10 

Shareholders 

Shareholding at the beginning 

of the year 

Cumulative Shareholding during the 

year 

No. of shares % of total 

shares of the 

company 

No. of shares % of total 

shares of the 

company 

 At the beginning of the year     

 Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters Shareholding during the 

year specifying the reasons for increase /decrease (e.g. allotment / 

transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.): 

    

 At the end of the year     

 

E) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel: 

          

SN Shareholding of each Directors and each Key Managerial Personnel Shareholding at the beginning 

of the year 

Cumulative Shareholding during the 

year 

No. of shares % of total 

shares of the 

company 

No. of shares % of total 

shares of the 

company 

 At the beginning of the year  NIL* NIL NIL NIL 

 Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters Shareholding during the 

year specifying the reasons for increase /decrease (e.g. allotment / 

transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.): 

NIL NIL NIL NIL 

 At the end of the year NIL NIL NIL NIL 

 

 *Two Directors hold 1 share each jointly with Promoter Shareholder i.e Tata Steel Limited jointly with Mr. Anand Sen with and BlueScope Steel Asia Holding PTY Ltd jointly 

   with Mr. Sanjay Dayal. 
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F) Indebtedness -Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment. 

                    (Amount in Lacs) 

 

  

Secured Loans excluding 

deposits 
Unsecured Loans Deposits Total Indebtedness 

Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year     
    

i) Principal Amount  82,074.00  18,288.38  -  100,362.38  

ii) Interest due but not paid  - - - - 

iii) Interest accrued but not due 8,376.11   - - 8,376.11  

Total (i+ii+iii) 90,450.11 18,288.38   - 108,738.49  

Change in Indebtedness during the financial year 
  

  
    

* Addition  42,526.00 3,660.83    46,186.83  

* Reduction *(33,550.83 ) (10,865.31)    (44,416.14)  

Net Change 8,975.17  (7,204.48)    1,770.69  

Indebtedness at the end of the financial year 
  

  
    

i) Principal Amount 92,526.00 11,083.90    103,609.90  

ii) Interest due but not paid -  -    -  

iii) Interest accrued but not due 6,899.28  -    6,899.28  

Total (i+ii+iii) 99,425.28 11,083.90    110,509.18  

    

   *Includes reduction in interest accrued but not due Rs. 1,476.83 Lacs. 
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XI. Remuneration of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel- 

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager: 

SN. Particulars of Remuneration   

    Mr. Harish Girish 

Pathak* (From 

01/04/2013 to 

31/10/2013 – 

MD/WTD) 

 

Mr. Riten 

Choudhury 

Managing 

Director 

 Total Amount 

1 Gross salary 

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the Income-tax 

Act, 1961 

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961 

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income- tax Act, 1961 

  

 19,60,000/- 

  

0/- 

 - 

  

78,40,586/- 

 

1,12,854/- 

- 

  

98,00,586/- 

 

 1,12,854/- 

  

2 Stock Option  - - - 

3 Sweat Equity  - - - 

4 Commission 

-  as % of profit 

-  others, specify… 

  

 - - - 

5 Others, please specify 

  

 - - - 

  Total (A) 

  

 19,60,000/-  79,53,440/-  99,13,440/- 

  Ceiling as per the Act 2013 

  

     As per Schedule V of the Companies Act 

* The above remuneration is based on the payments made during the Financial Year 2014-15 it includes the fixed salaries for FY 2014-15 and Incentive Remuneration for 2013-14, paid in 2014-15. The remuneration 

of Rs. 19.60 Lacs to Mr. Pathak,was the incentive remuneration for FY 2013-14 which was paid in 2014-15. 

B. Remuneration to other directors during FY 2014-15- NIL  

 

SN. Particulars of Remuneration Name of Directors Total Amount 

    ----- ---- ---- ---   

1 Independent Directors  - - - - - 

Fee for attending board committee meetings  - - - - - 

Commission  - - - - - 

Others, please specify  - - - - - 
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Total (1)  - - - - - 

2 Other Non-Executive Directors  - - - - - 

Fee for attending board committee meetings  - - - - - 

Commission  - - - - - 

Others, please specify  - - - - - 

  
Total (2)  - - - - - 

  Total (B)=(1+2)  - - - - - 

  

Total Managerial 

Remuneration 

  

        

  
Overall Ceiling as per the Act   

        

 

 

C. Remuneration to key managerial personnel other than MD/MANAGER/WTD during FY 2014-15 

 

SN Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel 

    CEO – N.A Mr. Sanjay Kasture -

Company Secretary* 

Mr. James 

Chelliah - CFO 

Total 

1 Gross salary 

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the Income-tax 

Act, 1961 

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961 

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961 

  

  

  

  

  

12,10,322/- 

 

 NIL  

 - 

  

70,53,136/- 

 

1,65,408/- 

 - 

  

92,63,458/- 

  

1,65,408/- 

 - 

2 Stock Option      

3 Sweat Equity         

4 Commission         

  -  as % of profit         

   others, specify…         

5 Others, please specify         

  Total    12,10,322/-  72,18,544/-  94,28,866/- 

 
*Part of the year
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 XII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES: 

There were no penalties/ punishments/compounding of offences for the year ended 31st March 2015. 

 

 

                                                                                              

 

                                                                        

 
 

                                                                             Sd/-                                                   Sd/- 

Place: Pune       Riten Choudhury  Kavita Sethi Jain 

Date: 14th September 2015     Managing Director  Company Secretary          
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Annexure -9  Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments in accordance 
with Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 

 
Particulars of loans, guarantees or investments und er section 186  

 

Amount outstanding as at 31st March 2015 

          (Rs. In Lacs) 

Particulars Amount 

Loans given NIL 

Guarantee given NIL 

Investments made 912.78 

 

 

Loans, Guarantees given or Investments made during the Financial Year 2014-15 – NIL 

 

 

On behalf of the Board of Directors 

            

 

                                                                    Sd/- 

Place: Pune         Sanjay Dayal 

Date: 14th September 2015       Chairman 
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Annexure 10 – Particulars of Energy Conservation, Technology Absorption 

and Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo required under the 

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 

 

A. Conservation of Energy 
 

i. Steps taken or impact on conservation of energy 
 

•  Reduction in specific consumption of thermal Energy in Color coating line  @ 13.4 % as compared to FY 14 

•  Reduction in specific electrical power consumption per ton of Metal coated sheet @ 7.14% as compared to 

FY 14 

•  Reduction in Electrical Energy & Propane consumption in Color Coating Line by switching off major high 

consuming power units automatically when the line is idle beyond half an hour.  

•  For sustainable recovery of steam condensate, switched over to air operated in lieu of steam operated 

steam condensate recovery system resulting in reduction of steam condensate loss by 20% as compared to 

FY 14. 

•  Reduction in electrical energy consumption by replacing high power lamps to low power lamps in high mast 

and by installing LED lamps in place of sodium vapor & incandescent lamps keeping the illumination 

requirement as per standard. Total unit saved 676340 Kwh in FY 15. 

•  Treated water is recycled for gardening, floor cleaning and firefighting @ 250 Cub M/Day. 

•  Energy conservation in EOT Cranes, replacement of conventional lamps and through optimizing the 

utilization of DG set. 

•  Operational control of A/c units using timer. 

•  Effective utilization of treated water for gardening thereby reducing the sourcing of fresh water by 40 %. 

 

ii. The steps taken by the company for utilizing alternate source of energy NIL (In planning) 

 

iii. Capital investment plan on energy conservation equipment 

 

Particulars ₹ crores 

Reduction of condensate loss by 10 % 0.15 

Replacement of existing sodium vapor to  LED for plant 

lighting   

0.20 

Power Factor improvement from 0.91 to 0.96 0.12 

Replacement of Load indication system (LIS) with VFD in EOT 

Cranes 
1.96 

Replacing high pressure sodium vapour lamplight 70W to 

CFL of 44W for the street lights 
0.1 

Implementing Micro PLC for the A/c units to switch off 

automatically during break hours. 
0.18 

Effective utilisation of treated water for gardening  1.4 

Replacing 625 KVA DG set with 100 KVA DG set 15 

Replacement of packing wood with Rice husk bag Nil 

Implementation of VFD in all EOT cranes  1.96 

Replacement of Metal Halide light with CFL.  0.68 

Replacement of High Pressure Sodium vapor Lamp to CFL  0.10 

Timer introduction for controlling Air conditioners & 

lightening of boundary wall. 
0.22 
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B. Technology Absorption 

 

i. Efforts made towards technology absorption 

Process development  

•  Installed Coriolis type Gas Mass Flow meter at propane plant to know overall propane consumption 

centrally for better control & monitoring. 

 

•  Replacement of Load indication system (LIS) with VFD in EOT cranes. 

The benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or import substitution 

Sl. 

No. 
Project Title Benefits derived 

Benefits derived / year 

Energy 

savings in 

Kwh 

Cost 

benefits in 

Rs. 

1 

Replacement of 

packing wood with 

Rice husk bag 

Wood used as a Packing material has now been 

replaced with rice husk, as filler material in 

HDPE bags. Energy saving related to this is 415 

Mwh equivalent to cost saving of Rs. 

320726.This has been implemented at two 

plants and hence the savings are multiplied. 

8,31,000 6,41,452 

2 
Implementation of VFD 

in all EOT cranes  

The Load indication system (LIS) of the EOT 

cranes has been replaced with VFD which has 

reduced the power consumption by 60 %. 

25,400 1,48,590 

3 
Replacement of Metal 

Halide light with CFL.  

Metal Halide light of 250W have been replaced 

with CFL of 85W in Shop floor maintaining the 

same illumination level 

41,000 2,39,850 

4 

Replacement of High 

Pressure Sodium 

Vapour lamp to CFL  

Street lights have been replaced from high 

pressure sodium vapor lamplight 70W to CFL of 

44W. Energy conservation observed is 3450  

Kwh. 

6,900 40,366 

5 

Timer introduction for 

controlling Air 

conditioners & 

boundary wall 

lightening 

Micro PLC has been implemented in the HVAC  

units of the Admin office so that it gets switched 

off automatically in Standrad room temperature 

& Lights switched off on Standrad illumination 

level 

21,000 1,22,850 

 

iv. In case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from the beginning of the 

financial year) - NIL 

 

(a) The details of technology imported - NIL 

(b) The year of import - Not applicable 

(c) Whether the technology been fully absorbed – Not applicable 

(d) If not fully absorbed areas where absorption has not taken place, and the reasons thereof and 

- Not applicable. 
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i. The expenditure incurred on R&D  - NIL 

ii. Foreign exchange earnings and outgo 

        (Rs. in Lacs) 

Foreign exchange earnings and outgo FY 2014-15 FY 2013-14 

a. Foreign exchange earnings 3,961.53 12,080.79 

b. Value of direct imports (C.I.F. Value) 12,040.37 8,205.99 

c. Expenditure in foreign currency 118.17 331.25 

 

 

 

On behalf of the Board of Directors 

            

 

                                                               Sd/- 

Place: Pune         Sanjay Dayal 

Date: 14th September 2015       Chairman 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

 
TO THE MEMBERS of Tata BlueScope Steel Limited  
Report on the Standalone Financial Statements 
 
We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Tata BlueScope Steel 
Limited  (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2015, the 
Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a 
summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.  
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements 
 
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial 
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash 
flows of the company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, 
including the Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act, read with rule 7 of 
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes maintenance of 
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provision of the Act for safeguarding the 
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection 
and application of the appropriate accounting policies; making judgements and estimates that are 
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of 
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements 
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error.  
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone financial statements based on our 
audit. 
 
We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and 
matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and 
the Rules made thereunder. 
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We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 
143(10) of the Act. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan 
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are 
free from material misstatement.  
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers 
internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the financial statements that 
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on whether the Company has in 
place an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the 
Company’s directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.  
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements. 
 
Opinion 
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, 
the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Act in the 
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles 
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2015, and its 
profit and its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 
 
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
 
1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2015 (“the Order”) issued by the 

Central Government of India in terms of Section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in the 
Annexure a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order. 

 
2. As required under provisions of section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

 
a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of 

our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.  
 

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the 
Company so far as appears from our examination of those books.  
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c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement dealt 
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account. 
 

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting 
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014. 
 

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 
2015 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 
31st March, 2015, from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the 
Act. 
 

f. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance 
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to 
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us: 
 
i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial 

position in its financial statements – Refer Note 30 (A), 30 (D) to the financial 
statements. 

 
      ii. The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts 

that require provision under any law or accounting standards for which there were 
any material foreseeable losses. 

 
iii. There were no amounts which are required to be transferred to the Investor 

Education and Protection Fund by the Company during the year. 
 

 
                For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS  

Chartered Accountants 
(Firm Registration No. 302009E) 

 
 
 
 

Sunil S Kothari 
Partner 

(Membership No. 208238) 
 
Place  : Pune 
Dated : 22nd April 2015          
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ANNEXURE TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
 
Referred to in Paragraph 1 under the heading ‘report on other legal and regulatory requirements’ 
of our report of even date 
 

i. In respect of its fixed assets: 

a. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including 
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets. 

 

b. As explained to us, fixed assets have been physically verified by the management in a 
phased periodical manner as per regular program of verification, which in our opinion is 
reasonable, having regard to the size of the Company and nature of its assets. No material 
discrepancies were noticed on such physical verification.  
 

ii.  In respect of its inventories: 

a. The inventories have been physically verified during the year by the management. In our 
opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable. 

 

b. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
procedures of physical verification of inventories followed by the management are 
reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of the Company and the nature of its 
business. 

 

c. The Company has maintained proper records of inventories. As explained to us, there 
were no material discrepancies noticed on physical verification of inventories as 
compared to the book records. 
 

iii.  The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firm or other 
parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Act. Therefore, the 
requirement of clauses (iii) (a) and (iii) (b) of paragraph 3 of the Order are not applicable to 
the Company.  

 

iv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is an 
adequate internal control system commensurate with the size of the Company and the nature 
of its business for the purchases of inventory and fixed assets and for the sale of goods and 
services. During the course of our audit, we have not observed any continuing failure to 
correct major weaknesses in such internal control system. 
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v. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted 

any deposit within the meaning of provisions of sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant 
provisions of the Act and the rules framed thereunder. Therefore, the provisions of clause (v) 
of paragraph 3 of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

 

vi. We have broadly reviewed the cost records maintained by the Company as prescribed by the 
Central Government under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act and are of the opinion 
that prima facie the prescribed cost records have been maintained. We have, however, not 
made a detailed examination of the cost records with a view to determine whether they are 
accurate or complete.  

 

vii.  In respect of statutory dues: 
 

a. According to the records of the Company, undisputed statutory dues including Provident 
Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-Tax, Sales Tax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax, 
Customs Duty, Excise Duty, Value Added Tax, Cess, and any other material statutory 
dues have been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities. According to the 
information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of 
the aforesaid dues were outstanding as at March 31, 2015 for a period of more than six 
months from the date of becoming payable. 
 

b. The disputed statutory dues aggregating Rs. 1,101.16 Lakhs, that have not been deposited 
on account of disputed matters pending before appropriate authorities are as under: 

 

Name of the 
Statute 

Nature 
of Dues 

Forum where 
dispute is 
pending 

Period to which 
the amount 
relates 

Amount 
Involved 
(Rs. In 
lakhs)  

The Finance Act , 
1994 

Service 
Tax 

CESTAT 
2005-06, 2006-07, 
2007-08 & 2008-
09 

125.77 

The Central Excise 
Act, 1944 

Excise 
Commissioner 
– Appeal 

2006-07, 2007-08, 
2008-09, 2010-11, 
2011-12 & 2013-
14 

66.03 

The Central Excise 
Act, 1944 

Excise 
Assistant 
Commissioner 

2011-12  
 

11.02 

The Customs Act , 
1962 

Customs 
Commissioner 
– Appeal 

2007-08 32.00 
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Name of the 
Statute 

Nature 
of Dues 

Forum where 
dispute is 
pending 

Period to which 
the amount 
relates 

Amount 
Involved 
(Rs. In 
lakhs)  

The Tamil Nadu 
VAT Act, 2006 

VAT 
Assistant 
Commissioner 

2007-08, 2008-09, 
2009-10, 2010-11 
2011-12 & 2012-
13 

233.23 

The Tamil Nadu 
VAT Act, 2006 

VAT 
Commissioner 
- Appeal 

2012-13 5.75 

The Rajasthan 
Value Added Tax 
Act, 2003 

VAT 
Commercial 
Tax Office 

2010-11 & 2011-
12 

41.84 

The Maharashtra 
VAT Act, 2002 

VAT 
Commissioner 
– Appeal 

2008-09 562.12 

The Jharkhand 
VAT Act , 2005 

VAT 
Commissioner 
– Appeal 

2007-08, 2008-09, 
2009-10 & 2010-
11 

23.40 

     
 

c. According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no amounts that are 
required to be transferred to investor education and protection fund, in accordance with 
the relevant provisions of the Companies Act 1956 (1 of 1956) and rules made 
thereunder, during the year.  

 
viii.  The accumulated losses of the Company at the end of the financial year are not less than fifty 

percent of its net worth and the Company has incurred cash losses only during the preceding 
year but has not incurred any cash loss during the current financial year. 

 

ix. Based on our audit procedures and as per the information and explanations given to us, we 
are of the opinion that the Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to banks. The 
Company has not borrowed any funds from financial institutions or debenture holders during 
the year under audit.  

 

x. According to information and explanation given to us the Company has not given any 
guarantee for loans taken by others from bank or financial institutions. Therefore, the 
provisions of clause (x) of paragraph 3 of the Order are not applicable to the Company.  

 

xi. The term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were raised.  
 

54 of 89.



 

xii. To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, 
no fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported 
during the year. 

 
            

 
 
 
 

 For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS 
Chartered Accountants 

(Firm Registration No. 302009E) 
 
 
 

Sunil S Kothari 
Partner 

(Membership No. 208238) 
 
 
Place: Pune 
Date: 22nd April 2015 
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Tata BlueScope Steel Limited

Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2015
Rs in Lakhs

As at 
31st March 2015

As at 
31st March 2014

Audited Audited

(I) EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) Shareholders' funds

(a) Share Capital 3 86,600.00 86,600.00
(b) Reserves and surplus 4 (58,812.73)                     (53,598.74)                     

27,787.27 33,001.26
(2) Non-current liabilities

(a) Long-term borrowings 5 67,526.00 83,078.00
(b) Deferred tax liabilities (net) 6 -                                 -                                 
(c) Long-term provisions 7 1,425.16 999.49
(d) Other non current liabilities 7(i) 3,113.86 6,431.69

72,065.02 90,509.18
(3) Current liabilities

(a) Short-term borrowings 8 3,583.90 10,788.38
(b) Trade payables 9 9,053.15 10,913.25
(c) Other current liabilities 10 43,309.04 18,816.05
(d) Short-term provisions 11 365.91 353.20

56,312.00 40,870.88
Total 156,164.29 164,381.32

(II) ASSETS
(1) Non-current assets

(a) Fixed assets
(i) Tangible assets 12 106,511.45 113,042.39
(ii) Intangible assets 13 916.65 1,274.67
(iii) Capital work-in-progress 13(i) 12.67 270.86

107,440.77 114,587.92
(b) Non-current investments 14 912.78 912.78
(c) Deferred tax assets (net) 6 -                                 -                                 
(d) Long-term loans and advances 15 752.64 909.25

1,665.42 1,822.03
(2) Current assets

(a) Inventories 16 22,648.85 21,345.83
(b) Trade receivables 17 11,713.59 13,786.94
(c) Cash and cash equivalents 18 4,235.55 1,369.87
(d) Short-term loans and advances 19 6,835.08 9,501.24
(e) Other current assets 20 1,625.03 1,967.49

47,058.10 47,971.37
Total 156,164.29 164,381.32

Summary of significant accounting policies. 2
The accompanying notes are an intergral part of the financial statements.

In terms of our report attached
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells                                    For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants                                    For Tata BlueScope Steel Limited

Sunil S Kothari                                                      Chairman                   Managing Director              Director Chief Financial Officer
Partner

Place:                                  Place: 
Date:   22nd April, 2015                                  Date:    22nd April, 2015

Particulars Note No.

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-Sd/-

Pune Mumbai
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Tata BlueScope Steel Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31s t March, 2015
Rs in Lakhs

Particulars
For the year ended 

31st March 2015
For the year ended 

31st March 2014

Audited Audited
I Revenue from operations (gross) 21 166,640.67 152,110.87

Less: Excise duty 17,725.33 16,044.06
Revenue from operations (net) 148,915.34 136,066.81

II Other Income 22 403.27 856.59
III Total Revenue (I + II)  149,318.61 136,923.40

IV EXPENSES
(a) Cost of materials consumed 23 109,360.52 98,038.53

(b)
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-
progress and stock-in-trade

24 (2,341.46)                         1,346.26

(c) Employee benefits expense 25 7,482.82 7,090.51
(d) Finance costs 26 12,523.91 12,148.83

(e) Depreciation and amortisation expense 12 & 13
7,300.80 7,876.83

(f) Other expenses 27 20,197.94 21,488.36
154,524.53 147,989.32

Total Expenses 154,524.53 147,989.32

V Profit / (Loss) before tax (III - IV) (5,205.92)                         (11,065.92)                  
VI Tax Expense

(1) Current Tax -                                   -                              
(2) Deferred Tax -                                   -                              
Total tax expense -                                   -                              

VII                           (5,205.92)                   (11,065.92)

VIII Earnings per equity share (Ref Note 35):
(1) Basic (0.6011)                            (1.2778)

(2) Diluted (0.6011)                            (1.2778)

Summary of significant accounting policies. 2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

In terms of our report attached
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells                                            For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants                                            For Tata BlueScope Steel Limited

Sunil S Kothari                                                                Chairman               Managing Director                Director Chief Financial Officer
Partner

Place:                                            Place: 
Date:    22nd April, 2015                                            Date:    22nd April, 2015

Note No.

 Profit / (Loss)  for the year (V-VI) 
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Tata BlueScope Steel Limited

Cash Flow Statement for  the year ended 31st March,  2015
Rs. in Lakhs

A. Cash flow from / (used in) operating activities
Net Loss before extraordinary items and tax (5,205.94)              (11,065.92)                    
Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation 7,300.79                 7,876.83             
Finance costs 12,523.91               12,148.83           
Liabilities / provisions no longer required written back (35.93)                     (113.50)               
Provision for bad and doubtful debts 72.34                      163.98                
Provision for warranty 110.90                    (53.50)                 
Interest from bank on deposit (9.44)                       (46.32)                 
Provision for slow moving inventory (83.94)                     193.32                
Net unrealised exchange (gain) / loss 38.89                      18.15                  

19,917.52             20,187.80                     
Operating profit / (loss) before working capital changes 14,711.58             9,121.88                       
Changes in working capital:

Adjustments for (increase) / decrease in operating assets:
Inventories (1,219.07)                2,374.83             
Trade receivables 2,092.66                 (953.46)               
Short-term loans and advances 2,666.16                 761.38                
Long-term loans and advances 98.72                      130.11                
Other current assets 188.24                    (236.89)               

Adjustments for increase / (decrease) in operating liabilities:
Trade payables (1,762.85)                (2,841.79)            
Other current liabilities (642.70)                   1,336.11             
Short-term provisions (98.18)                     83.21                  
Long-term provisions 425.66                    51.26                  

1,748.64               704.76                          
Cash generated from operations 16,460.22             9,826.64                       

158.21                  8.41                              
Net cash flow from / (used in) operating activities  (A) 16,618.43             9,835.05                       

B. Cash flow from / (used in) investing activities
(2,777.21)                (1,126.37)            

Interest from bank on deposit 5.45                        46.32
(2,771.76)              (1,080.05)                      

Net cash flow from / (used in) investing activities  (B) (2,771.76)              (1,080.05)                      

C. Cash flow from / (used in) financing activities
Proceeds from issue of equity shares -                          -                      
Proceeds from long-term borrowings 42,526.00               -                      
Repayment of long-term borrowings (32,074.00)              (6,496.00)            
Proceeds from other short-term borrowings 3,660.83                 13,408.03           
Repayment of other short-term borrowings (10,944.94)              (9,470.91)            
Finance cost (14,000.74)              (13,820.64)          

(10,832.85)            (16,379.52)                    
Net cash flow from / (used in) financing activities  (C) (10,832.85)            (16,379.52)                    
Net increase / (decrease) in Cash and cash equivale nts (A+B+C) 3,013.82               (7,624.52)                      
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year /period 1,369.87               8,854.12                       

(148.14)                 140.27                          

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 4,235.55               1,369.87                       
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year comparises of:
(a) Cash on hand 1.26                      0.92                              

1,572.83               1,368.62                       
2,661.46               0.33                              
4,235.55               1,369.87                       

Notes: 0.00                      (0.00)                             

(i) Figure in brackets represent outflows

In terms of our review report attached 
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants For Tata BlueScope Steel Limited

Sunil S Kothari                          Chairman          Managing Director     Director Chief Financial Officer
Partner
 

Place : Place : 
Date :   22nd April, 2015 Date :   22nd April, 2015

See accompanying notes forming part of the financial  statements

(b) Balances with banks
(i) In current accounts

Effect of exchange differences on restatement of foreign currency Cash and cash 
equivalents

(iii) In deposit accounts with original maturity of less than 3 months

Capital expenditure on fixed assets, including capital advances & CWIP 

Audited Audited

For the year ended 
31st March 2014Particulars

For the year ended 
31st March 2015

Net income tax (paid) / refunds

Pune Mumbai
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Tata BlueScope Steel Limited 
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2015 

39. During the year, in view of not having taxable profits, the Company has not made any provision for     Income 
Taxes in the Books of Accounts. The Company maintains the information and documents as required under 
the transfer pricing regulations under sections 92-92F of the Income Tax Act, 1961. The management is of 
the view that its international and domestic transactions to which the above regulations apply, are at arm`s 
length so that the aforesaid legislation will not have any impact on the financial statements, particularly on 
the amount of tax expense and that of provision for taxation, if any.     

    
40. Though the Company has continued incurring losses during the year, the Company’s operations have stabilized 

resulting in lower losses as compared to the previous corresponding year.  While the delay in commencement 
of operations at the Jamshedpur plant had majorly contributed to the accumulated losses, the company has 
scaled up its operations over the last two years.  The significant sales growth achieved and steps taken to 
reduce cost of production through various cost reduction initiatives have contributed to improved financial 
results. Management believes that the increasing turnover and reduced production and overhead costs will 
lead to profitable growth in the coming years and the company will continue to operate uninterruptedly and 
settle its obligations as they fall due. 

 

41. Previous year figures have been regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary to correspond with the current 
year classification / disclosure. 
 
 
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
For Tata BlueScope Steel Limited 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Chairman                      Managing Director                          Director                  Chief Financial Officer 
 
Place: 
Date:   22nd April, 2015                                                                                   
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